SNMG & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
F-378, SARITA VIHAR,
NEW DELHI-110076
Ph. 29948663/29948664
email : gargrk58@gmail.com

Independent auditor’s report

To the Members of JKT Consulting Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

1

We have audited the financial statements of JKT Consulting Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash
Flow Statement for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2020, its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial
statements.

Other Information

4.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director's report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.

Further to the continuous spreading of COVID-19 across India, the Indian Government
announced a strict 2 1-day lockdown on March 24, 2020, which was further extended till June
30,2020 across India to contain the spread of the virus. This has resulted in restriction on
physical visit to the clients locations and the need for carrying out alternative audit

procedures as per the Standards on augiting prescribed by the Institute of chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl). ]




As a result of the above, the entire audit was carried out based on remote access of the
data as provided by the Management. This has been carried out based on the advisory on
"Specific considerations while conducting distance audit / remote audit / online audit
under current COVID-19 situation” issued by the Auditing and Assurance Standards Board
of ICAl. We have been represented by the Management that the data provided for our
audit purposes is correct, complete, reliable and are directly generated by the
accounting system of the company without any further manual modifications.

We bring to the attention of the users that the audit of the financial statements has been
performed in the aforesaid conditions.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

5.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements

7.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances; but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.
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10.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

12.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement dealt

with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

(¢)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,

2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as

on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.

(f)  This report does not include Report on the internal financial controls under clause (i) of

Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Report on internal
financial controls’), since in our opinion and according to the information and
explanation given to us, the said report on internal financial controls is not applicable
to the Company basis the exemption available to the Company under MCA notification
no. G.S.R. 583(E) dated June 13, 2017, read with corrigendum dated July 13, 2017 on
reporting on internal financial controls over financial reporting.




(g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2020.

(h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

2. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

3. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For SNMG & Co.
FRN: 004921N
hartered Accountants

Place: New Delﬂi =;“‘—';\J Rakesh Kumar
Date: [] 5 DEC 2020 s Partner

M.No. 083911

UDIN: 200%39|IAAAAEAITS)



“Annexure A” to Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of JKT Consulting
Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020, we report that:

i (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management
during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(c) The Company is not having any immovable property.

ii. The company is not having inventory during the year, hence the said clause is not
applicable.

iif. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms
or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(iii) of the said order are not applicable to the
company.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of loan, investment, guarantees and securities.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India read with the provisions of Sections 73
to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act, the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not
applicable.

vi. The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records
under subsection (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities carried on
by the company.

vii. (a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees
state insurance, income-tax, sales tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 3,
2020 for a period of more than six months from the date on when they become
payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no dues of income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax,
goods and service-tax, duty of customs, and duty of excise or value added tax or cess
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution or bank.

ix. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial
public offer or further public offer or term Loans.




> & Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the
company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

Xi. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Companies Act are not applicable to the company. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3 (xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Xii. In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of
clause 3 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Xiii, According to the information and explanations given by the management,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards. The provisions of sec 177 are not applicable to the company and
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xiii) insofar as it relates to section 177 of the
Act is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

xiv. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year
under review. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

XV, Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with any director or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For SNMG & Co.
FRN : 004921N
e artered Accountants

b e Rakesh Kumar

Place: New Delhi S—— Partner
Date : ENEr o . No. :

050EC 200 M. No. : 083911

UDIN: 200%39|1ARAFAERIIRI



BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020

JKT Consulting Limited

As at As at
Particulars Notes March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' Funds
{(a) Share Capital 3 8,600,000 8,600,000
(b) Reserve and Surplus 4 (31,480,335) (41,045,833)
Non- Current Liabilities
(a) Long term borrowings 5 - -
(b) Long term provisions 4,358.641 5,937,039
Current Liabilities
(a) Short term borrowings 7 40,541,335 50,333,770
(b) Trade Payables 8 3,302,876 3,957,745
(c) Other current liabilities u 6,978,380 11,609,732
(d) Short term provisions 10 1,460,851 1,792,454
TOTAL 33,761,748 41,184,927
I ASSETS

Non Current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets 11

Tangible assets 489,718 536,102
(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 12 5,229,646 9,186,544
(c) Long term loans and advances 13 8,133,260 5,644,164
(d) Other Non Current assets 14 - -
Current Assets
(a) Trade Receivables 15 10,878,295 13,211,582
(b) Cash and cash equivalents 16 2,124 409 1,944,003
(c) Short term loans and advances 17 6,190,841 8,786,088
(d) Other current assets 18 715.580 1,876,444
TOTAL 33,761,748 41,184,927

This is the balance sheet referred to in our audit report of even date.
The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

For SNMG & Co
Chartered Accountants o
Firm Reg. No.: 0492IN /(G ,;U--

<

Rakesh Kumar
Partner =
M.No.:083911

Place : New Delhi
Date:05.12.2020

UDIN: 2003391 IRAAREAIFRI

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

JKT Consulting Limited

-
e
Satish Chandra Gupta

Director

DIN:01595040
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JKT Consulting Limited

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Year ended Year ended
Particulars Notes March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Revenue
I Revenue from operation 19 56,199,142 81,468,935
II  Other Income 20 1,385,745 1,245,308
Total revenue 57,584,887 82,714,243
[l Expenses
(a) Purchase Computer Hardware/Soflware 21 - 5,904,421
(b) Employee Benefit Expenses 22 30,438 425 37,814,227
(c) Other Expenses 23 8,827,339 17,602,260
(d) Finance Costs 24 4,651,201 8,673,721
(e) Depreciation and Amortization expense 25 42,108 51,088
Total expenses 43,959,073 70,045,717
IV Profit Before Exceptional & Extraordinary Items & Tax 13,625.814 12,668,526
Exceptional & Extraordinary Items 8 C
V' Profit Before Tax 13,625,814 12,668,526
VI Tax Expenses
(a) Current Tax(Provision) 2,274,421 2,609,464
(b) Tax of earlier years 103,417 S
(b) Deferred Tax 3,956,898 2,598,926
(c) Mat Credit for the Year (2,274,421) (2,609,464)
4,060,315 2,598,926
VII Profit for the Year 9,565,499 10,069,600
VIII Earnings per Equity Share: 29
(a) Basic 11.12 11.71
(b) Diluted 11.12 11.71

This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date

The notes are an integral part of these financial statements

For SNMG & Co

Chartered Accountants o

irm Reg. No.: 0492IN /" *
{ »/

gy 4

Rakesh Kumar \ ._,_
Partner :
M.No.:083911

Place : New Delhi
Date: 05.12.2020

UDIN: 2008291 /AARAERIFYI

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
JKT Consulting Limited

~
O et
Satish Chandra Gupta Babu Abraham
Director Director

DIN:01595040 DIN:00532197
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KT

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Year ended Year ended

Particul
BEERESY March 31,2020 (Rs.) March 31, 2019 (Rs.)

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit Before Tax 13,625,814 12,668,526
Adjustment For:

Depreciation & Amortization 42,108 51,088
Loss on Sale of Assets (5723) -
Bad Debt written off - 6,482,042
Interest Expenses 4,651,201 8,672,401
Interest Income (88,234) (94,760)
Operating profit before working capital changes 18,225,166 27,779,297
Adjustments For:

(Increase)/decrease in Sundry Debtors 2,333,287 5,568,223
(Increase)/decrease in Inventories - -
(Increase)/decrease in Loans, Advances & Other assets 1,267,015 4,146,675
Increasef(decrease) in Trade Payable (0654,86Y) 788,846
Increase/(decrease) in CL & Provisions (6,541,373) (4,273,802)
Cash Generated from operations 14,629,225 34,009,289
Less: Direct Tax Paid - -
Less: Income Tax Adjustment 103,417 .
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 14,525,808 34,009,289
B.Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Purchase of Fixed Assets - -
Proceeds from sale of Fixed Assets 10,000 -
Interest Income 88,234 94,760

Fixed Deposit placed with banks having original maturity over three
months closing

(1,345,520)

(1,562,694)

Fixed Deposit with banks matured having original maturity over three 1,562,694 1,333,748

months opening

Net Cash flow from Investing Activity 315,408 (134,186)

C.Cash flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds (Repayment) of short termn borrowings (9,792,435) (32,839,061)

Proceeds (Repayment) of Long term borrowings - -

Interest Paid (4,651,201) (8,672,401)

Net Cash flow from Investing Activity (14,443,636) (41,511,462)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent during the

year(A+B+C) 197,580 (7,636,358)

Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the Year 381,309 8,017,668

Cash & Cash Equivalent at the end of the Year 778,889 381,309

Cash & Cash Equivalents:

Cash On Hand 13,532 7,432

On Current Accounts 765,357 373,877
778,889 381;309

Note

1) Cash & Cash Equivalents components are as per Note 16 of the Financial Statements.

As Per Our Report of Even Date Attached
For SNMG & CO

Chartered Accountants
“irm Reg. No.; 04921N

For and on behall of Board of Directors of
JKT Consulting Limited

.r-'—"__-_—__

R iy

RakesH Kumar \ Satish Chandra Gupia Babu Abraham
Partner : : Director Director
M.No.:083911 DIN:01595040 DIN:00532197

Place : New Delhi
Date:05.12.2020 Annual Report 2019-20
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Notes Forming part of Financial Statement

1). CORPORATE INFORMATION

JKT Consulting Limited (CIN: U74140DL2007FLC160160) was incorporated on 06.03.2007 as a Public Limited Company. The Certificate of
Commencement of Business was granted to it by the Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi and Haryana with effect from 19.06.2007. The
company has its Registered Office at A-2, Local Shopping Complex, Masjid Moth, Greater Kailash - 11, New Delhi - 110048 and its corporate
office at F-2 & 3, Sector 3, Noida 201301. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of M/s JK Technosoft Limited and the main objectives
of the Company are to provide Business solution through ERP Solution, Business Processes Solutions and consultation in the field of Computer
Science including planning, preparation of feasibility and other various application systems, market planning, research and development,
training, designing, data processing and provide consultancy in the field of project planning, networking, office automation, telecommunication
and other related areas to its clients in India and abroad.

2). SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A Basis of Preparation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India under the historical
cost convention on accrual basis. Pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, till the standards of accounting or any addendum thereto are prescribed by Central Government in consultation and recommendation of
the National Financial Reporting Authority, the existing Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 1956 shall continue to apply.
Consequently, these financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the accounting standards notified under
section 211(3c) [Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006, as amended) and other provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's operating cycle and other criteria set out in the
Schedule TII to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of services and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and
their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current - non
current classification of assets and liabilities.

B Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, including the disclosure of contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and the reported income and
expenses during the reporting period like provision for employee benefits, provision for doubtful debts, useful lives of fixed assets, calculation
of work in progress and provision for taxation etc. The Management believe that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements
are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to these estimates between the actual results and the estimates are recognized in the
periods in which the results are know/ materialize

C Revenue Recognition

The company derives its revenues primarily from software and Education services. Revenue from software development on time and material
basis is recognized as the related services are rendered. Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognized using the milestone completion
certificate as per contract or work order. Pre-received Income represent the excess of billing over cost and earning while accrued income
represent the excess of cost and earning over billing. Maintenance revenue is recognized over period of maintenance contract. Education/
Training Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the time spent thereon compared with the scheduled completion
thereof and the total course fee. Revenue from Sale of Software is recognized on delivery of goods by transferring all risk and reward to
customers.

D Tangible Assets and Capital work-in-progress
Tangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost of acquisition
is inclusive of freight, duties, taxes and other dircctly attributable expenses incurred to bring the assets to their working condition for intended
use.
Subsequent costs related to an item of Property, Flant & Equipment aré recognised in the carrying amount of the item if the recognition criteria
are met,

E Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for acquisition of such assets and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
impairment.

F Depreciation and Amortization
Tangible Fixed Assets
Depreciation on fixed assets is provided using straight line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 1T of the Companies Act, 2013,

In respect of fixed assets whose useful life has been revised, the unamortized depreciable amount is charged over the revised remaining useful
life.

Intangible Fixed Assets
The intangible assets arec amortized over a period of three years based on its estimated useful life and the amortized period are reviewed at the
end of cach financial year.

Annual Report 2019-20
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G Impairment of Assets
The carrying amount of assets, other than inventories is reviewed at each balance sheet date, to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of assets is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognized, whenever the carrying amount of assets or its cash generating units exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the asset's net selling price and value in use which is determined bascd on the estimated future cash flow
generated from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life, discounted to their present value.

An impairment loss is reversed, if there has becn a change in the estimates made 1o determine and recognize the recoverable amount in the
carlier year,

H Inventories
Closing stock (Traded) has been valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Closing stock of Work-in-Progress has been valued at Cost plus
appropriate overheads, as certified by the Management,

1 Foreign Currency Transactions
Initial Recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the
reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non - monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non monetary items which are
carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the
values were determined.

Exchange Differences
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on restatement of monetary items at rates different from those at which
they were initially recorded during the period, arc recognized as income or as expenses in the period in which they arise.

J Provision for Current and Deferred Tax

Current tax is-the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future
income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT
is rccognized as an assets in the Balance Sheet where it is probable that future economic benefits associated with it will flow to the Company.

Deferred tax is recognized on timing differences between the accounting income and the taxable income for the year and quantified using the
tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted as on the balance sheet date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all timing
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is a reasonable certainty that assets can be realized in future. However,
where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward of losses and item related to capital losses, deferred tax assets are recognized only if
there is a virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence of realization of such assets.

K Retirement Benefits
Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum
payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount base on the respective employee's
salary and the tenure of employment with the company.

Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are dctermined by actuarial valuation, performed by an independent actuary, at each Balance Sheet
date using the projected unit credit method. The Company recognized the net obligation of the gratuity plan in the Balance Sheet as an asset or
liability, respectively in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 15, "Employee Benefits". Actuarial gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumption are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they
arise.

Provident fund

Eligible employees receive benefits from a provident fund, which is a defined benefit plan. Both the employee and the Company make monthly
contributions to the provident fund plan equal to a specified percentage of the employee's salary. The Company contributes the same to
Regional Provident Fund Corporation, New Delhi. The Employee Deposit Link Scheme (EDLI) and Employee Pension Fund are covered by
RPFC, New Delhi,
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Compensated absence

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The
expected cost of accumulating compensated abscnce is determined by actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method on the additional
amount expected to be paid/ availed as a results of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the Balance Sheet date. Expenses on non-
accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the period in which the absence occurs.

Lease

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased assets are recognized as operating
leases. Operating Lease payments are recognized as an expenses in the statement of profit and loss as per the lease terms.

Assets leased by the Company in its capacity as lessee where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership vest in the Cc.apany are
classified as finance lease. Such leases are capitalized at the inception of the lease and charged off in accordance with the applicable terms/
years of lease.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not
discounted to their present value and are determined based on best estimates required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These
are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are
disclosed in the notes to accounts, A contingent asset is neither recognized nor disclosed in financial statements.

Earning Per Share

Basic earning per share is computed by dividing the Net Profit after tax by the weighted average number of cquity shares outstanding during
the period.

Diluted earnings per shares is computed by dividing the Net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity share that could have been issued upon conversiotn of all
dilutive potential shares, if any.

Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three
months or less from the date of acquisition) and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flows are reported using indirect method, whereby the Net Profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expense associated with investing
or financing cash flows. The cash flows from opcrating, investing and financing activitics are segregated,

Annual Report 2019-20 Czﬁ_.-
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3) SHARE CAPITAL As at As at
March 31,2020  March 31, 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Authorized
1,000,000 Equity Shares (March 31, 2019 1,000,000) of Rs. 10 each 10,000,000 10,000,000
10,000,000 10,000,000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

860,000 Equity Shares (March 31, 2019: £60,000) of Rs, 10 each 8,600,000 8,600,000
8,600,000 8,600,000
(a) Reconciliation of number of Shares
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount

Equity Shares
Balance as at the beginning of the year/ period

860,000 8,600,000 860,000 8,600,000
Add: Issued during the year/ period = = = =
Balance as at the end of the year/ period 860,000 8.600,000 860,000 8,600,000

b) Terms/ right attached to the Equity Shares
The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote
per share,

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity share will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts, it any. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

¢) Details of Shareholding holding more than 5% shares in the company

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Equity Share of Rs.10/- Each No. of Shares No. of Shares
JK Technosoft Limited $59,994 859,994
Others-Subscribers to MOA 6 6
860,000 860,000
4) RESERVES AND SURPLUS As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Surplus/ (Deficit) in statement of profit and loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year/ period (41,045,833) (51,115,433)
Profit/ (Loss) for the year/ period 9,565,499 10,069,600
Balance as at the end of the year/ period (31 .480,}3_5) (41,045,833)
5) LONG TERM BORROWINGS As at March 31,2020 As at March 31,2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Current Non Current Current Non Current
Unsecured
Loan From Bank
Axis Bank Limited - - - -
Total - - - -
6) LONG TERM PROVISIONS As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Provision for employee henefils
Gratuity 2,595,643 3,092,341
Leave Encashment 1,762,998 2,844 698
4358@41 5 037,039

2 S e
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7) SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Secured
Working capital Loan from Bank
Axis Bank Limited

JKT Consulting Limited

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
4,646,297 7,891,192
4,646,297 7,891,192

{Working capital Loan from Axis Bank Limited, Secured by present & future present Asscts, tenure one year with 12.85% P.A. rate of

interest)

Other borrowings (from entities other than bank)
Williamson Financial Services Limited
(Payable on Demand, Interest rate 15%0 p.a.)
JKT Learning Solutions Pvt,Ltd

Loan and Advances from related partics
JK Technosoft Limited
{ Payable on Demand, Interest rate 10% p.a)

8) TRADE PAYABLES

Salary Payable
Trade Payable
Other Payables

9) OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current maturities on long term debt (Refer Note No. 5 )
Interest accrued and due on borrowings

Advance from Customers

Statutory Dues

Payable to Employees

Other Payables (Including outstanding liabilities)

10) SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity Payable
Leave Encashment Payable

12) DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)

Deferred Tax Liabilities( Reversal)
Depreciation and Amortization
Deferred Tax Assets

Provision for Expenses

Unabsorbed Loss/ Depreciation
Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Anplual Report 2019-20

7,500,000 7,300,000
- 209,340
28,395,038 34,733,237
35,895,038 42,442,577
40,541,335 50,333,770
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
1,700,658 2,286,806
1,602,218 1,670,939
3,302,876 3,957,745
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
4,640,713 6,892 308
2,125,671 4,512,852
68,129 63,183
143 867 141,409
6,978,380 11,609,752
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
791,799 797,206
669,052 Q05 248
1,460,851 1,792,454
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
281,518 322,861
2,753,639 3,285,002
2,194 489 5,378,681
5,229,646 9,186,544
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13) LONG TERM LOAN AND ADVANCES As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
(Unsecured and Considered Good)
Security Deposit-LT 332,931 382,931
Mat Credit Receivable 7,800,329 5,261,233
8,133,260 5,644,164
14) OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
15) TRADE RECEIVABLES As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Unsecured
Over six months
Considered Good 5,709,138 6,854,929
Considered Doubtful - -
Others
Considered Good 9,247,722 10,435,218
Considered Doubtful - -
Less: Provision for Doubtful Receivables 4,078,565 4,078,565
10,878,295 13,211,582
16) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Balance with Banks 765,357 373,877
Cash on hand 13,532 7,432
778,889 381,309
Other bank balances
Fixed Deposit with Bank 1,345,520 1,562,694
2,124,409 1,944,003
17) SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES Asat As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Unsecured and Considered Good
JKT Learning Solutions Pvt. Ltd. 105214 .
Advance to Vendors/ Suppliers 10,000 -
Loan and Advances to Staff (Incl. FFS recovery) 32070 103,132
Advance Income Tax(Net of Provision)
Previous years 2,543,711
Current Year 5,774,267
Less: Provision for income tax (2,274,421) 6,043,557 8,682,956
6,190,841 8,786,088
18) OTHER CURRENT ASSETS As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Unsecured and Considered Good
Income Accrued 456,645 1,721,126
Prepaid Expenses 217,948 119,860
GST Receivable 40,987 35,458
715,580 1,876,444

——
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19)

20

21)

22

23)

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Income from Services

[nformation Services and Consulting Services:

Domestic
Export

Commercial Coaching and Training Services:

Domestic

Deemed Export (SEZ)
Sale of Hardware & Software

Domestic

Deemed Export (SEZ)

OTHER INCOME

Interest

Reimbursement of Expenses
Notice Period Recovery

Misc. Recovery

Excess Provision Written back
Interest on Income Tax Refund
Profit on Sale of Assets

Leave Encashment

PURCHASE

Purchase of Software

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

Salaries and Wages
Contribution to Provident and other Funds
Staff Welfare Expenses

OTHER EXPENSES

Rent

Professional Fees & Legal Expenses
Electric, Power, Fuel and Water
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses
Internet & Networking

Telephone Expenses

Maintenance Expenses - Office
Maintenance Expenses - Computers
Business Promotion

Audit Fee

Bad Debts

Insurance Expenscs

Bank Charges

Miscellaneous Expenses

nual Report 2019-20
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As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
53,026,957 66,136,294
2,742,950 6,767,766
420235 2,365,233
- 6,199,642
56,199,142 81,468,935
As at March 31, As at
2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
88,234 94,760
31,800 47,988
- 20,000
- 2,800
407 -
579,747 1,079,760
5,723
679,834
1,385,745 1,245,308
As at As al
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
- 5,904,421
- 5,904,421
As at As al
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
29,005,479 36,053,145
1,118,532 1,275,468
314414 485,614
30,438,425 37,814,227
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
1,644,372 1,507,345
4,962,988 6,511,739
- 470,056
290,707 434 808
11,067 13,100
220,788 310,082
814,334 692,968
- 46,616
- 5,833
100,000 100,000
- 6,482,042
426,655 335,099
192,016 225,758
164,412 466,814
8,827,339 17,602,260

g
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24) FINANCE COST

Interest on TDS

Interest on other Statutory Dues
Interest on Loan

Processing Charges

25) DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISA'T ION EXPENSES

Depreciation on Tangible Assets
Amortization of Intangible Assets

26) EMPLOYEE DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

PROVISION FOR GRATUITY

1 Assumptions:
Discount Rate
Rate of Increase in Compensation Levels
Rate of Return on Plan Assets

II Changes in Present Value of Obligations During the Period (Amount in Rs.)
Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning of the period
Interest Cost
Current Service Cost
Benefit Paid
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligations
Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the period

ITT Changes in the Fair value of Plan Assets during the Period
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the period
Expected Return on Plan Assets
Contributions
Benefits Paid
Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) on Plan Assets
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the period

IV Fair Value of Plan Assets
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the period
Actual Return on Plan Assets
Contributions
Benefits Paid
Fair value of plan assets at the end of period

VYV Expenses Recognized in the Profit and Loss Account
Current Service Cost
Past Service Cost
Interest Cost
Expected Retumn on Plan Assets
Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized 1n the period
Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Vv

-

Bifurcation of Present value of Obligation at the end of the year as per Schedule I11
of the Companies Act, 2013

Current Liability(Short term)

Non-Current Liability(Long term)

Present Value of Obligation as at the end

Annual Report 2015-20
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As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
= 1,300
= 20
4,651,201 8,672,401
4,651,201 8,673,721
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
42,108 51,088
42,108 51,088
2019-20 2018-19
5.50% 6.80%
10.00% 14.00%
3,889,547 2,610,709
265,050 180,011
498,404 530,656
(617,107) (54,522)
(648,452) 622,693
3,387,442 3,889,547
498,404 530,656
265,050 180,011
(648,452) 622,693
115,002 1,333,360
791,799 797,206
2,595,643 3,092,341
3,387,442 3,889,547
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PROVISION FOR LEAVE ENCASHMENT

27

v

vl

Assumptions:
Discount Rate
Rate of Increase in Compensation [ cvels

Changes in Present Value of Obligations During the Period (Amount in Rs.)

Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning of the period

Interest Cost

Current Service Cost

Curtailment Cost/(Credit)

Benefit Paid

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligation:

Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the period

Changes in the Fair value of Plan Assets during the Period

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the period
Expected Return on Plan Assets

Contributions

Benefits Paid

Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) on Plan Assets

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the period

Fair Value of Plan Assets

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beg nning of the period
Actual Return on Plan Assets

Caontributions

Benefits Paid

Fair value of plan assets at the end of period

Expenses Recognized in the Profit and Loss Account
Current Service Cost

Past Service Cost

Interest Cost

Expected Return on Plan Assets

Net actuarial (gain}/ loss recognized in the period
Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Bifurcation of Present value of Obligation at the end of the year as per Schedule 111

of the Companies Act, 2013

Current Liability(Short term)

Nen-Current Liability(Long term)

Present Value of Obligation as at the end

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company has identified business segments as its primary segment
Business segments of the Company are SAP Implementation & Support, Educational Services & Sale,

2019-20

6.80%
10.00%

3,839,946
261,670
309,901

(728,062)
(1,251,405)
2,432,050

308,901

261,670
(1251405)
(679834)

669,052
1,762,998
2,432,050

JKT Consulting Limited

2018-19

6.80%
14.00%

2,491,813
171,813
665,953

(126,703)
637,070
3,839,946

665,953
171,813
637,070
1,474,836

095,248
2,844,698
3,839,946

Revenue and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment. Expenses incurred in India on behalf of
other segments and not directly identifiablc to each reportable segment have been allocated to each segment on the basis of associated
revenues of each segment. All other expenses which are not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed as un-allocable
expenses.

Assets and liabilities that are directly attributable to segments are disclosed under cach reportable segment. All other assets and liabilities are
disclosed as un-allocable. Fixed assets have not been allocated to primary and secondary segments as these are used interchangeably

between scgments.

Year Ended March 31, 2020

Particulars Chmeuiting Educational Services Sales Total
Services

Revenue & Other Income 53,026,957 3,172,185 56,199,142

Identified Operating Expenses 28,733,873 1,704,552 30,438,425

Allocable Expenses 10,686,378 1,448,525 12,134,903

Segment Results(PBT) 13,606,706 19,108 13,625,814

Unallocable Expenses/Income 4,060,315

Profit after Tax 9,565,499

Annual Report 2019-20
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Year Ended March 31, 2019

JKT Consulting Limited

Particulars Consulting Sale Total
Services Educational Services
Revenue 67,232,925 9,281,676 6,199,642 82,714,243
Identified Operating Expenses 33,709,691 2,343,454 5,904,421 41,957,566
Allucublc-Expmses 25,335,161 2,752,791 - 28,088,151
Segment Results 8,187,874 4,185,431 295,221 12,668,526
Unallocable Expenses 2,598,926
Profit after Tax 10,069,600
As at March 31, 2020
Particulars Consulting Sale Total
Services Educational Services
Segment Asscts 11,170,714 164,226 11,334,940
Unallocable Assets - 22,426,808
Total Assets 33,761,748
Segment Liabilities 7,099,021 421,129 7,520,150
Unallocable Liabilities 26,241,598
Total Liabilities 33,761,748
As at March 31, 2019
Consulting . .
Particulars Educational Services Sale Total
Services
Segment Asscts 12,863,919 2,068,789 14,932,708
Unallocable Assets - - 26,252,219
Total Assets 41,184,927
Segment Liabilities 10,833 432 853.806 11,687,238
Unallocable Liabilities 29,497,689
Total Liabilities 41,184,927

The Company has a single geographical segment as per Accounting Standard 17 dealing with "Segment Reporting” issued by the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of India.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

a.  Name of Related Parties and description of relationship:

Holding Company

Key Management Personnel

Associates Companies / Enterprises

JK Technosoft Limited

Abhishek Singhania (Director)
Satish Chandra Gupta (Director)
Babu Abraham (Director)

JK Infrastructure & Developers Pvt. Lid.
Manphool Trading & Finance Co Lid

Relative to Key Management Personne! NA
b.  Transactions with related parties during the year
R . i Associated
Diseription Subsidiaries/ l:loIdmg Companies/ Key Management
Companies p Personnel
Enterprises
Sale of Services/ Product -
Interest Paid 3,763,197
Interest Received %
Reimbursement of Expenses B
Received against Loans/ Advance 42 485,527
Loans/ Advances Given/Repaid 54,462,200

| Annual Report 2019-20
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Transactions with related parties during the year 2018-2019

JKT Consulting Limited

Associated
Description p Companies/ Key Management
Subsidiaries/ Holding i Personnel
Companies . Ao
Sale of Services/ Product 9,940,350 -
Interest Paid 6,264,969
Interest Received
Reimbursement of Expenses - *
Received against Loans/ Advance 63,002,192 - -
Loans/ Advances Given/Repaid 92,026,208 - -
c.  Balance with related parties as on 31st March, 2020
Description Subsidiaries/ Holding g?rsno]::t:tiec:f Ry MR cH!
Personnel
Companies Enterprises
Amount Payable
JK Technosoft Limited 31,781,913 -
Balance with related parties as on 31st March, 2019
Deseription o . TR e Key Management
Subsidiaries/ Holding Companies/ Personnel
Companies Enterprises
Amount Payable
JK Technosoft Limited 40,371,709 - -
29) EARNING PER SHARE As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Profit for the year 9,565,499 10,069,600
Amount available for Equity Shares 9,565,499 10,069,600
Weighted Average number of Shares 860,000 860,000
Eaming per share
Basic 11.12 11.71
Diluted 11.12 11.71
Face Value per share 10 10
30) AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Audit Fees 80,000 80,000
Other Services - Tax Audit 20,000 20,000
Audit Expenses 4,000 1,600
GST 18,720 18,288
122,720 119,888

31) REMITTANCE IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES FOR DIVIDENDS

The Company has no foreign sharcholder and also the company has not paid any dividend, so there is no remittance of Dividend in Foreign

Currencies,

32) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The company has given FDR of Rs. 25,000/~ to UP Trade Tax Department and provide Bank Gurantee for Rs.69,856/- to the customer for

various operational purpose.

UP Trade Tax Department has raised demand of Rs.606,076/- for FY-2013-2014. The Company has appealed against this demand to higher

authority of Up Tax Department.

Annual Report 2019-20
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33)

34)

35)

6)

n

38)

The company has no Prior Period Income (P.Y. 2018-19- NIL) and Prior Period Expenses Nil (P.Y. 2018-19 - NIL) . These expenses and
income are booked in the respective heads for the current year and correspondingly disclosed in the previous year. Details of Prior Period
Transactions are as below:

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)

Prior Period Income

Prior Period Expenses

Leases

Operating lease: company as lessee

The Company’s significant operating leasc arrangements include premises taken on lease ranging for a period of 1-3 years and all of such
lease arrangements are cancellable, Lease payments under such arrangements have been recognized as an expense in the statement of Profit
& Loss as against straight line basis over the lease term as required by AS-19 in view of the uncertainty of continuing the arrangement(s)

Future minimum |ease payments

Not later than one year 1644360
Later than one year and not later than five years 1507330
Lease payments recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss during the year 1644372

Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise

The Government of India has promulgated an Act namely The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 which comes
into force with effect from October 2, 2006, The Company has, during the year, not received any intimation from any of its suppliers
regarding their status under the said Act and hence disclosures, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end along with interest
paid/payable as required under the said Act have not been given. The Company generally makes payments to all its suppliers within the
agreed credit period (generally less than 45 days) and thus, the Management is confident that the liability of interest under this Act, if any,
would not be material.

Some of the balance grouped under Trade Receivables, Trade Payables, Loan and Advances recoverable in cash or in kind are subject to
confirmation from respective parties. Differences, if any, arising on reconciliation of these balances, in the opinion of the management, will
not be material and will be accounted for 1s and when such reconciliations are completed,

In the opinion of the Management, the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are approximately of the value stated if realized in the ordinary
course of business,

Previous years' figures have been recasted restated.
For SNMG & Co

Chartered Accountants
im Reg, No.:04921N

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
JKT Consulting Limited

\
CZ““"I"

Satish Chandra Gupta "~ Babu Abraham

Rakesh Kumar

Partner Director Director
M.No.:083911 DIN:01595040 DIN:00532197
Place : New Delhi

Date:05.12.2020
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Notice

Notice is hereby given the 13th Annual General Meeting of the members of the company will be held at the registered office of the

company at A-2, LSC, Masjid moth, Greater Kailash-Il, New Delhi 110048 on Thursday , the 31st day of December 2020 at 1.00 P.M. to
transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

To receive, consider and adopt the audited Balance sheet and Profit & loss Account of the company as at 31st March
2020 along wilh the Board of Directors and Auditors report thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr.Satish Chandra Gupta, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for
teappointment.

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Satish Chandra Gupta (DIN: 01595040), who retires by rotatlon pursuant to section 152, uf the

Companies Act, 2013, and being eligible, offers himself for re-appolntment, be and is hereby reappuinted as Director of
the Company.”

Re- appointment of M/S SNMG & Co. (FRN: 004921N) New Delhi as the Statutory Auditors of the Company
To consider, and if thought fit to pass with or without modification the following resolutions as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and the Companies
(Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the consent of the Members of the Company be and is
hereby accorded to the re - appointment of M/s SNMG & Co., Chartered Accountants (F.N0.-004921N),having office at F-
378, Sarita Vihar, New Delhi-110076, as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for 5 {five) consecutive Financial Years
commencing from 2020 - 2021 to 2024 — 2025 and to hold office from the conclusion of 13th Annual General Meeting to
the conclusion ot 18th Annual General Meeting for the Financlal Year ending March 31, 2025, al ¢ 1emuneration may be
muiually decided between the Auditors and the Board of Directors of the Company.”

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

OF JKT CONSULTING LIMITED

S JXKT CONSULTING LTD. y
=2 c a \ ‘
Satish Chandra Gupta (DIN: OIS%thg)ctor
Director
Add: B-47, Sector- 36,Noida- 201301

Place: New Delhi

Dated: 05-12-2020
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JKT Consulting Limited

A member entitled to attend and vote in the above meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and on a
poll, to vote instead of himself. Proxy need not be a member. Proxy, in order to be effective, should be lodged with the
company at the registered office at least 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.Proxy Form in Form no.
MGT-11 is annexed.

All documents referred to in this notice shall be kept open for inspection of the members during offize hours till the date
of the Annual General Meeting

In case of shares held by Body(ies) Corporate, the Authorised representative should be accompanied with a duly certified
true copy of Board Resolution/Authority letter.

The Instrument appointing proxies shall however be deposited at the registered office of the company not less than
48(Fourty eight) hours before the commencement of the meeting.

Copy of Balance sheet and Proflt&Loss Account for the year ended on 31st march,2020 along with the report of Director’s
and Auditor's is annexed.

Pursuant to SS-2 (Secratarial Standard on General Meeting) as issued by Institute of Company Sezretaries of India,the
route map for reaching the Meeting venue showing the prominent landmark is given as an Annexure.
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

| hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of JKT Consulting Limited (the “Company”) held on Thursday, the 31st day of
December 2020 at 1.00 P.M.at its Registered Office situated at A-2, LSC, Masjid Moth, Greater Kailash-1i, New Delhi 110048

Full Name of the Member {in BLOCK LETTERS).

Regd. Folio No.

DPID

Client ID

NO. Of Shares heldu it i e v s s TIves RN SIS s S oA VNS PRSI

Full Name of the Proxy (in BLOCK LETTERS) rreresanasrennentes

Member’s/ Proxy’s Signature

Note: Please fill up this attendance slip and hand over at the entrance of the meeting hall,

Annual Report|2019-20
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JKT Consulting Limited
CIN:U74140DL2007PLC160160
Regd office: A-2,LSC,Masjid Moth,greater kailash-11,New Delhi-
www.jktech.com
FORM NO. MGT-11
PROXY FORM

(Pursuant to the provisions of section 105(6) fo the Companies Act,2013 and Rules 19(3) of the Companies {Management and
Administration) Rules,2014.)

Name of Member(s) :

Registered Address :
E-Mail Id :
Folio No./Client No.:
DPId:
1/We being the member(s) of equity shares of the above mentioned Company,hereby appoint:
1 Name:
Address:
E-Mail 1d:
Signature:

or failing him/her
2 Name:

Address:

E-Mail Id:

Signature:

3 Name:
Address:
E-Mail Id:
Slgnature:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote(on a poll) for me/us on my/our behalf at the 13th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held
on Thursday,31st day of December, 2020 at 1:00 P.M. at the register office of the Company and at any adjournment thereof, in respect of
such resolution, as are indirected below:

1 Adoption of the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020, statement of Profit & Loss Account for the financial year
ended on that date and reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Satish Chandra Gupta {(01595040), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers
himself for reappointment.

3 Reappointment of M/s SNMG & Co.{(F.No.: 04921N), Chartered Accountants, Delhi, on the expiry of its term of 5 years as

the Auditors of the company from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 18th Annul general
Meeting of the company.

Signed this, day of 2020

Affix Revenue
Signature of Member(s) Stamp

Signature of proxy holder(s)

Note:This form of proxy in order to be cffective should be duly completed,signed and deposited at the registered office of the
company,not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.
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JKT Consulting Limited

Director's Report

Your directors are pleased to present the 13th Annual Report of the company together with the audited accounts for the financial year

ended 31st March, 2020.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Gross Revenue 56,199,142 81,468,935
Other Income 1,385,745 1,245,308
Expenditure 43,916,965 69,994,629
Operating Profit/-Loss 13,667,922 12,719,614
Depreciation & Amortisation 42,108 51,088
Profit Before Tax 13,625,814 12,668,526
Tax Adjustment 4,060,315 2,598,926
Profit After Tax 9,565,499 10,069,600
Transferred to General Reserve 9,565,499 10,069,600
Balance in P&L Account to be Carried Forward -31,480,335 -41,045,833

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

During the financial year 2019-20, the revenue of the Company was Rs. 5.62/- Crore as compared to Rs. 8.15/- Crore of last financial
year. The Net Profit of the Company for the financial year 2019-20 was Rs. .96/- Crore as against the previous years net profit of
Rs.100.69/- Crore . The Company is expecting some potential growth in its revenue and profit into upcoming years.

DIVIDEND

During the year under report, the company did not recommend any dividends.

TRANSFER TO RESERVE

During the year, Rs. 95,65,499/- the net profit of the Company was transferred to Reserve and Surplus. After this the reserve of the

company is Rs.{31,480,335/-} (minus).

SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up share capital of the company as at 31st march,2020 remained Rs. 86 Lacs.During the period under report, the company has
not issued any share including sweat equity,ESOP and/or convertible Debenture.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS,IF ANY

There is no change in the nature of business of the company during the year 2019-20.

DIRECTORS

In accordance to the provislons of section 152 of the companies Act,2013, Mr.Satish Chandra Gupta (DIN: 01595040) retired by rotation at
this Annual General Meeting, and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year 2019-20, four Board meetings were convened and held,the detalls of which are glven below.The inlervening gap between
the meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act,2013.

Sr.No Date of Board Directors Present
Meetings

1 1. Mr. Abhishek|2. Mr. Satish 3. Mr. Babu Abraham
10-Jun-19 Singhania Gupta

2 1. Mr. Abhishek|2. Mr. Satish 3. Mr. Babu Abraham
3-Sep-19 Singhania Gupta

3 2. Mr. Satish 3. Mr. Babu Abraham
12-Dec-19 Gupta

4 2. Mr. Satish 3. Mr. Babu Abraham
16-Mar-20 Gupta

SUBSIDIARIES

The Company does not have any subsidiary either in India or in abroad.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITEMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE

OF REPORT

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company between the end of the financial

year and the date of report.
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SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDER(S) PASSED BY THE REGUALTOR(S)/COURT(S) OR TRIBUNAL(S)
No significant or material orders has been passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going concern status and
company's operations in future.

AUDITORS

The auditors M/s SNMG & CO. (M.No. 083911), Chartered Accountants, Delhiretired from their office at this Annual General
Meeting.They are,however, eligible for re-appointment. The Company has received a letter from the Auditors confirming that they are
eligible for re-apointment as Auditors of the company under section 139 of the companies Act,2013 and meet the criteria for appointment
specified in section 141 of the companies Act,2013.

AUDITORS REPORT

The comments on statement of accounts referred to in the report of the Auditors are self explanatory. The Auditors report does not
contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year 2019-20,were on arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary
course of business and that the provisons of section 188 of the companies Act,2013 are not attracted.Further there are no material related
party transactions made by the company with promoters,Directors or other designated persons which may have a potential confllct with
the interest of the company at large. Disclosure of related party transactions during the year is annexed in form no. AOC-2 as Anneure-|.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the year under review,Your company did not accept deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act,2013.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The internal control system of the company is commensurate with its size,scale and complexities of its operations.The internal contorl
system are reviewed and monitored regularly.

RISK MANAGAEMENT POLICY

The Company has a well laid out risk management policy,Covering the process of identifying,assessing,mitigating and reviewing critical
risks impacting the achievements of the Company's objectives.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The details farming part of the extract of Annual return in form No.MGT-9 as required under section 92 of the Companies Act,2013 is
annexed hereto as ANNEXURE-II .

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The provision of section 135 of the Companeis Act,2013 are not applicable to the company.so the Company has not spent any amount
towards Corporate Social Responsibility.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE(PREVENTION,PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT,2013

In the line with provisions of ‘Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace { Prevention,Prohibition & Redressal( Act,2013, an 'Internal
Complaint Committee'has been constituted in the company for redressal of complaint(s) against Sexual harassment of Women employees.
The committe is headed by a Senior level Woman officer of the company and includes an NGO representative as one of its members.

During the financial year 2019-20, the company did not receive any complaint of sexual harassment.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS,GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

During the year under review,Your company has not provided any Loan, given guarantee or made investment which is covered under the
provisions of section 186 of Companies Act,2013

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

During the year,the company has not engaged any employee whose particulars are required to be reported under the provisions of section
134 of the companies Act,2013 read with Companies {Appointment & Remunaration) Rules,2014.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

The company is in Service Industry and do not consume high level of energy, adequate measures have been taken by the management to
consume energy by using energy-efficient computers & equipments with the latest lechnologies. As the cost of energy consumed by Lthe
Company forms a very small portion of the total cost, the impact of change in energy cost on total cost is insignificant.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Your Company has no activity related to Technology Absorption.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

There was no foreign exchange earnings and expenditures during the year 2019-20

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Director's Pursuant to the provisions of section 134(3) of the Companies Act,2013 do hereby confirm that:
.

i) In the preparation of the annual accounts,the applicable Accounting Standards have been followed and that no material
departures have been made from the same;

i)} They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial
year and of the profit of the company of for that year;

iii) They have taken proper and sufficient care for maintanance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the companies Act,2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

iv) They have prepared the annual accounts on going concern basis;
v} They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal financial controls

are adequate and were operating effectively; and

vi} They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems
were adequate and operating effectively.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the services of the employees at all levels and for the assistance form holding
company,bank,customers,vendors and member during the year under review.

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors %"
et TS / .
OF JKT CONSULTINGLIMITER. T ING LTo l\ - , /i s e aattinann
e G M L
Satish Chandra Gupta (DIN: 01595Q4Q) ‘ Babu Abraham (DIN:00532197)
Director Preeot Director
Address: B-47, Sector-36,Noida-201301 Address: 24,Rajpur Road,civil lines,

Delhi-110054

Place: New Delhi
Date: 05-12-2020
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Annexure |
FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section(3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the companies (Accounts) Rules,2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section
188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis-

There was no Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions entered into during the year ended 31st March, 2020, which were not at arm’s length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm'’s length basis-

Details of material contracts or Arrangements or Transactions at arm’s length basis for the year ended March 31, 2020 are as follows:

Name of Nature of Nature of Transaction Value Duration of Transaction Amount Paid as advance,if any
related party [relationship transaction Date of approval
by Board,if any
Interest Paid 3,763,197 Since these RPT's
arein the
Received ordinary course
against 42,485,527 of business and
1. JK Holding Loans/Advance areatarm's
Technosoft Cotnpany Loans/Advance 54,462,200 | April 2019-March 2020 length basis,so N.A.
Limited Given/Repaid approval of the
Board is not
applicable for
these
transactions.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of JKT Consulting Limited

p , ST CONSULTING LTD,I/\/
/;%.,,..\,L,/}'uw'/}"”w“_“ 2= ¢

Date: 05.12.2020 " Babu Abraham (DIN:00532197) Satish Chandra Gupta (DIN:01595040)
Place: New Delhi (Director) (Direc[t.»m.ector
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REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:
] CIN
il Registratlon Date
ili Name of the Company
v Category/Sub-category of
v Address of the Registered

office
vl Whether listed company
vil Name , Address & contact

details of the Registrar &
Transfer Agent, if any.

Annexure [l

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
(As on Financial Year ended on 31.03.2020)

Administration ) Rules, 2014.

U74140DL2007PLC160160
3/6/2007

JKT Consulting Limited
Public Company

A-2,L5C, Masjid Moth,Greater Kailash-Il, New Delhl-110048

No
NA

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the campany shall be stated

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management &

SLNo [Name & bescrlptlon of maln products/services NIC Code of the % to total turnover
Product /service of the company
1 Camputer Programming, Consultancy and related 620 100%
PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
S No Name & Address of the CIN/GLN Holding/ Subsidlary/ | % of Shares Held Applicable Sectlon
Company Assoclate
1 JK Technosoft Limited, A-2,
Local Shopping Complex, X
8PLCO3 1 100 2(87
Masjid Moth, Greater U64202DL1988P| 0870 | Holding Company % (87)
Kailash - II, New Delhi

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equlty Share capltal Break up as % to total Equity)

Category-wlise Shareholding

Category of Shareholders  |No. of share held at the beginning of the No. of share held at the end of the year % Change
year (April 1, 2019) {March 31, 2020) during the
year

Dem [Physical |Total % of Total|Demat Physical Total % of Total
at Share Share

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF [ 6 0 6 6 0 0

b) Central Govt.or State Govt.

c) Bodies Corporates 859,994 859,994 100% 859,994 859,994 100% 0

d) Bank/Fl

SUB TOTAL:{A) (1) 860,000 860,000 100% 860,000 | 860,000 100% 0

Category-wise Shareholding (Cont.}

Category of Shareholders No. of share held at the beglnning of the No. of share held at the beginning of the | % Change
year (April 1, 2019) year (March 31, 2020) during the
year

Dem |Physical Total % of Total|Demat Physical Total % of Total
at Share Share

(2) Foreign [o} 0 0 0 0 (4] 0

a) NRI- Individuals

b) Other Individuals

c) Badies Corp.

d) Banks/Fl

e) Any other...

SUB TOTAL (A} (2) 0 0 0% a 0% 0% 0

Total Shareholding of Promoter

(A)= [A)(1)+[AN2) H50,000 860,000 100% 860,000 B60,000 100% o
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B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING
(1) Institutions 1] 0 0 0 0 0 0
a) Mutual Funds
b) Banks/Fl
C) Cenntral govt
d) State Govt.
8) Venture Capltal Fund |
{) Insurance Compan
) FIIS
h) Foreign Venture Capital Fund:
1) Others [specify)
SUB TOTAL (B){1): 0 0 0 0 o 0 0
(2] Non Institutions
a) Bodies corporates
i} Indian I
ii) Overseas
b) Indlviduals ]
i) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share capital
upto Rs.1 lakhs
ii) Individuals shareholders
holding nominal share capltal
in excess of Rs. 1 lakhs
c) Others (specify)
SUB TOTAL [B)(2): 0
Total Public Shareholding
(B)=(B){1)+(B)I2) - 0% - 0% 0
C. Shares held by € lian for GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total [A+B4C) | 860000] 860000 100%] 860000]  860000] 100%] 0
() Shareholding of Promoters
Sl. No. Shareholder's Name No. of share held at the beginning |No. of share held at the end of the| % Change
of the year (Aprll 1, 2019} year {March 31, 2020) during the
year
No. of Shares |% of Total|% of No. of|% of Total|% of
Share  of|shares Shares Share of|shares
the pledged the pledged
Company |encumbe Company |encumber
red to ed to total
total shares
shares
1|JK Technosoft Limited 859,994 100% [} 859,994 100% 0 0
2|Mr. Abhishek Singhanla 1 0% 0 1 0% 0 0
3[Mr. Satish Chandra Gupta 1 0% 0 1 0% 0 0
4|Mr. Shyam Verma 1 0% 0 1 0% 0 0
S|Mr. R.K. Kamra 1 0% 0 1 0% 0 0
6|Mr. Yuvra] Bahadur 1 0% 0 1 0% 0 0
7|Mr. Rajiv Mittal 1 0% 0 1 0% 0 0
Total 860,000 100% 0 860,000 100% 0 [+]
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(i) Change In Promoter's HoldIng

Sl. No.

Shareholder's Name

No. of share held at the beglnning of the year

{April 1, 2019)

Cumulative Shareholding during the year
(Aprll 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020)

No. of Shares % of Total Share of No. of Shares % of Total Share of the
the Company Campany

At the beginning of the year 860,000 100% 860,000 100%
1|JK Technosoft Limited 859,994 100% 859,994 100%
2| Mr. Abhishek Singhanla 1 0% 1 0%
3| Mr, Satish Changra Gupta 1 0% 1 0%
4|Mr. Shyam Verma 1 0% 1 0%
S|{Mr. R.K. Kamra 1 0% 1 0%
6|Mr. Yuvraj Bahadur 1 0% 1 0%
7|Mr. Rajiv Mittal 1 0% 1 0%

Date wise increase/decrease

in Promoters Share holding

durlng the year specifying

the reasons for No Change

increase/decrease (e.g.

allotment/transfer/bonus/s

weat equity etc)

At the end of the year 860,000 100% 860,000 100%
1|/K Technosoft Limited 860,000 100% 860,000 100%
2| Mr. Abhishek Singhanla 1 0% 1 0%
3| Mr. Satish Chandra Gupta 1 0% 1 0%
4{Mr. Shyam Verma 1 0% 1 0%
S|Mr. R.K. Kamra 1 0% 1 0%
6|Mr. Yuvraj Bahadur 1 0% 1 0%
7|Mr. Rajiv Mittal 1 0% 1 0%

{lv) Shareholding Pattern of Top Ten Shar

eholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

Sl. No. Shareholder's Name No. of share held at the beginning of the year No. of share held at the end of the year
(April 1, 2019} {March 31, 2020)
No. of Shares % of Total Share of No. of Shares % of Total Share of the
the Company Company
At the beginning of the year . 0% - 0%
Date wise increase/decrease
in Promoters Share holding
during the year specifying
the reasons for
Increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/s
weat equity etc)
At the end of the year - 0% 0%
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{v) Shareholdlng of Directors and Key Managerlal Personnnel (KMP)

Vi

Sl. No. Shareholder's Name No. of share held at the beginning of the year No. of share held at the end of the year
{(Aprll 1, 2019) (March 31, 2020)
No. of Shares % of Total Share of No. of Shares % of Total Share of the
the Company Company
At the beginning of the year . 0% 0%
Date wise increase/decrease
in Promoters Share holding
during the year speclfylng
the reasons for
increase/decrease {e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/s
weat equity etc)
At the end of the year | 0% [ - 0%
INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including Interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
Partlculars Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding deposlts Loans Indebtedness
Indebt at the beginning of the financial year
I} Principal Amount 7,891,192 42,442 577 50,333,770
1) Interest due but not paid E =
1li) Interest accrued bul not due . .
Total {I+1i+li1} 7,891,192 42,442,577 - 50,333,769
Change in Indebted during the financlal year
Additions = -
Reduction 3,244,895 6,547,539 - 9,792,434
Net Change 4,646,297 35,895,038 E 40,541,335
Indebted at the end ot the ti ial year
1j Principal Amount 4,646,297 35,895,038 - 40,541,336
ii} Interest due but not paid
jii} Interest accrued but not due - = 0
Total {I+11+111) 4,646,297 35,895,038 - 40,541,335
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A.  Remuneratlon to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager:
Sl. No. Partlculars of R atlon Name of the MD/WTD/Manager Total Amount
D WID — [Wanager
1 Gross salary
{a) Salary as per provislons cunlained in section 17(1) of the Income
{b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income tax Act, 1961
{c ) Profits In lieu of salary under sectlon 17(3) of the Income Tax Act,
2 |Stock optlon
3 Sweat Equity &
4 Commilsslon i,
as % of profit ﬂ .
others (speclify) A
5 Others, please specify
Total [A)
Ceiling as per the Act
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Vil

ation to other directors:

51. No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of the Directors

Total Amount

Independent Directors

{a) Fee for attending board committee meetings

(b) Commisslon

{c ) Others, please specify

Total (1)

Other Non Executive Directors

(a) Fee for attending

{b) Commisslon

S

{c ) Others. please specifyv.

Total (2)

'[qtal (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerlal Remuneration

Overall Celllng as per the Act.

atlon to Key Mangerial Personnel other than MD/ Managers/ WTDS

Sl. No.

Partlculars of Remuneratlon

Key Managerlal Personnel

Total Amount

CEO cs CFO

Gross Salary

|a) Salary as per provisions contained In section 17(1) of the Income

{b} Value of pergulsites u/s 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(c ) Profits in lleu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income Tax Act,

Stack Option

w

Sweat Equity

Commission

as % of profit

others, specify

Others, please specify

Total

PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Sl. No.

Type Sectlon of the Companles

Act

Brief Description

Detalls of
Penalty/Punishment/
Compounding fees
Imposed

Authorlty
(RD/NCLT/
Court)

|Appeall
made If
any (glve
details)

COMPANY

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

~

Compounding

OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

Date
Place:

C COMSULTING il

e

5 =
_M/ v
¥ S .
Babu Abraham(DIN:00532157) 3,
(Director) LAl

05.12.2020
New Delhl

toi
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JKT Consulting Limited

Director's Report

Your directors are pleased to present the 13th Annual Report of the company together with the audited accounts for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2020,

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

Gross Revenue 56,199,142 81,468,935
Other Income 1,385,745 1,245,308
E dit

e 43,916,965 69,994,629
Operating Profit/-Loss 13,667,922 12,719,614
Depreciation & Amaortisation 42,108 51,088
Profit Before Tax 13,625,814 12,668,526
Tax Adjustment 4,060,315 2,598,926
Profit After Tax 9,565,499 10,069,600
Transferred to General Reserve 9,565,499 10,069,600
Balance in P&L Account to be Carried Forward -31,480,335 -41,045,833

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

During the financial year 2019-20, the revenue of the Company was Rs. 5.62/- Crore as compared to Rs. 8.15/- Crore of last financial
year. The Net Profit of the Company for the financial year 2019-20 was Rs. .36/- Crore as against the previous years net profit of
Rs.100.69/- Crore . The Company is expecting some potential growth in its revenue and profit into upcoming years.

DIVIDEND
During the year under report, the company did not recommend any dividends.

TRANSFER TO RESERVE

During the year, Rs. 95,65,499/- the net profit of the Company was transferred to Reserve and Surplus. After this the reserve of the
company is Rs.(31,480,335/-) (minus).

SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up share capital of the company as at 31st march,2020 remained Rs. 86 Lacs.During the period under report, the company has
not issued any share including sweat equity,ESOP and/or convertible Debenture.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS,IF ANY

There is no change in the nature of business of the company during the year 2019-20.

DIRECTORS
In accordance to the provisions of section 152 of the companies Act,2013, Mr.Satish Chandra Gupta (DIN: 01595040) retired by rotation at

this Annual General Meeting, and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year 2019-20, four Board meetings were convened and held,the details of which are given below.The intervening gap between
the meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act,2013.

Sr.No Date of Board Directors Present
Meetings

1 1. Mr. Abhishek|2. Mr. Satish 3. Mr. Babu Abraham
10-Jun-19 Singhania Gupta

2 1. Mr. Abhishek|2. Mr. Satish 3. Mr, Babu Abraham
3-Sep-19 Singhania Gupta

3 2. Mr. Satish 3. Mr. Babu Abraham
12-Dec-19 Gupta

4 2. Mr. Satish 3. Mr. Babu Abraham
16-Mar-20 Gupta

SUBSIDIARIES
The Company does not have any subsidiary either in India or in abroad.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITEMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE
OF REPORT

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company between the end of the financial
year and the date of report.
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SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDER(S) PASSED BY THE REGUALTOR(S)/COURT(S) OR TRIBUNAL(S)
No significant or material orders has been passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going concern status and
company's operations in future,

AUDITORS

The auditors M/s SNMG & CO. (M.No. 083911), Chartered Accountants, Delhiretired from their office at this Annual General
Meeting.They are,however, eligible for re-appointment. The Company has received a letter from the Auditors confirming that they are
eligible for re-apointment as Auditors of the company under section 139 of the companies Act,2013 and meet the criteria for appointment
specified in section 141 of the companies Act,2013.

AUDITORS REPORT
The comments on statement of accounts referred to in the report of the Auditors are self explanatory. The Auditors report does not
contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year 2019-20,were on arm's length basis and were in the ordinary
course of business and that the provisons of section 188 of the companies Act,2013 are not attracted.Further there are no material related
party transactions made by the company with promoters,Directors or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with
the interest of the company at large. Disclosure of related party transactions during the year is annexed in form no. AOC-2 as Anneure-1.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the year under review,Your company did not accept deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act,2013.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The internal control system of the company is commensurate with its size,scale and complexities of its operations.The internal contorl
system are reviewed and monitored regularly.

RISK MANAGAEMENT POLICY

The Company has a well laid out risk management policy,Covering the process of identifying,assessing,mitigating and reviewing critical
risks impacting the achievements of the Company's objectives.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The details farming part of the extract of Annual return in form No.MGT-9 as required under section 92 of the Companies Act,2013 is
annexed hereto as ANNEXURE-II .

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The provision of section 135 of the Companeis Act,2013 are not applicable to the company.so the Company has not spent any amount
towards Corporate Social Responsibility.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE(PREVENTION,PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT,2013

In the line with provisions of 'Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace ( Prevention,Prohibition & Redressal( Act,2013, an 'Internal
Complaint Committee'has been constituted in the company for redressal of complaint(s) against Sexual harassment of Women employees.
The committe is headed by a Senior level Woman officer of the company and includes an NGO representative as one of its members.

During the financial year 2019-20, the company did not receive any complaint of sexual harassment.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS,GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

During the year under review,Your company has not provided any Loan, given guarantee or made investment which is covered under the
provisions of section 186 of Companies Act,2013

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

During the year,the company has not engaged any employee whose particulars are required to be reported under the provisions of section
134 of the companies Act,2013 read with Companies (Appointment & Remunaration) Rules,2014.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

The company is in Service Industry and do not consume high level of energy, adequate measures have been taken by the management to
consume energy by using energy-efficient computers & equipments with the latest Technologies. As the cost of energy consumed by the
Company forms a very small portion of the total cost, the impact of change in energy cost on total cost is insignificant.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Your Company has no activity related to Technology Absorption.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

There was no foreign exchange earnings and expenditures during the year 2019-20

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Director's Pursuant to the provisions of section 134(3) of the Companies Act,2013 do hereby confirm that:

ii)

.

In the preparation of the annual accounts,the applicable Accounting Standards have been followed and that no material
departures have been made from the same;

They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial
year and of the profit of the company of for that year;

iiil) They have taken proper and sufficient care for maintanance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the companies Act,2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

iv) They have prepared the annual accounts on going concern basis;

v) They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal financial controls
are adequate and were operating effectively; and

vi) They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems
were adequate and operating effectively.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the services of the employees at all levels and for the assistance form holding
company,bank,customers,vendors and member during the year under review.
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For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

OF JKT CONSULTING LIMITED |1\ L l\ ¥y yw/yw/lw*"'—f

—_ Direc

SN S i

Satish Chandra Gupta (DIN: 01595Qd0) Babu Abraham (DIN:00532197)
Director Ir Director
Address: B-47, Sector-36,Noida-201301 Address: 24,Rajpur Road,civil lines,
Delhi-110054

Place: New Delhi

Date: 05-12-2020
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Annexure |
FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section(3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the companies (Accounts) Rules,2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section
188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis-
There was no Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions entered into during the year ended 31st March, 2020, which were not at arm’s length basis.

2, Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis-

Details of material contracts or Arrangements or Transactions at arm’s length basis for the year ended March 31, 2020 are as follows:

Name of |Nature of Nature of Transaction Value Duration of Transaction Amount Paid as advance,if any
related party |relationship transaction Date of approval
by Board,if any
Interest Paid 3,763,197 Since these RPT's
are in the
Received ordinary course
against 42,485,527 of business and
1.JK Holding Loans/Advance are atarm's
Technosoft Company Loans/Advance 54,462,200 | April 2019-March 2020 | length basis,so N.A.
Limited Given/Repaid approval of the
Board is not
applicable for
these
transactions.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of JKT Consulting Limited

A__

SULTING L'TD.](

- & &

Date: 05.12.2020 " Babu Abraham (DIN:00532197) Satish Chandra Gupta (DIN:01595040)
Place: New Delhi (Director) ;. s (Director). - ¢ -

I
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
(As on Financial Year ended on 31.03.2020)

Annexure 1l
FORM NO. MGT 9

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management &

| REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

i CIN
il Registration Date

i Name of the Company

iv  Category/Sub-category of
v Address of the Registered

office

vi Whether listed company
vii Name , Address & contact
details of the Registrar &

Transfer Agent, If any.

Administration ) Rules, 2014.

U74140DL2007PLC160160

3/6/2007

JKT Consulting Limited
Public Company
A-2,L5C, Masjid Moth,Greater Kailash-1l, New Delhi-110048

No
NA

Il PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated

SL No

Name & Description of main products/services

NIC Code of the

% to total turnover

Product /service of the company
1 Computer Programming, Consultancy and related 620 100%
Il PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
[sI No Name & Address of the CIN/GLN Holding/ Subsidiary/ | % of Shares Held Applicable Section
Company Assoclate
1 [JKTechnesoft Limited, A-2,
| Sh ing Ci lex,
Local Shopping Complex. | \1c/>02DL1988PLC030870 | Holding Company 100% 2(87)

Masjid Moth, Greater
Kailash - Il, New Delhi

IV SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity)

(i) Category-wise Shareholding

Category of Shareholders  |No. of share held at the beginning of the No. of share held at the end of the year % Change
year (April 1, 2019) (March 31, 2020) during the
year

Dem |Physical  |Total % of Total|Demat |Physical Total % of Total
at Share Share

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF 6 6 0 3 5 0 0

b) Central Govt.or State Govt.

c) Badies Corporates 859,994 859,994 100% 859,954 | 859,994 100% 0

d) Bank/Fl

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1) 860,000 860,000 100% 860,000 860,000 100% 0

(i) Category-wise Shareholding (Cont.)
Category of Shareholders No. of share held at the beginning of the No. of share held at the beginning of the % Change
year (April 1, 2019) year (March 31, 2020) during the
year

Dem |Physical Total % of Total|Demat  |Physical Total % of Total
at Share Share

2) Foreign V] 0 0 0 0 0 0

a) NRI- Individuals

b) Other Individuals

c) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks/Fl

e) Any other...

SUB TOTAL (A) (2) 0 0 0% 0 0% 0% 0

Total Shareholding of Promoter

(A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2) 860,000 860,000 100% 860,000 | 860,000 100% 0
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JKT Consulting Limited

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING
(1) Institutions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
a) Mutual Funds
b) Banks/Fl
C) Cenntral govt
d) State Govt.
r;e_] Venture Capital Fund
f) Insurance Companies
) FIIS §
h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds
i) Others (specify}
SUB TOTAL (B)(1): 0 0 0 0 ) 0 0
{2) Non Institutions
a) Bodies corporates
i) Indian |
i) Overseas
b) Individuals
i) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share capital
upto Rs.1 lakhs
ii) Individuals shareholders
helding nominal share capital
in excess of Rs. 1 lakhs
c) Others (specify)
SUB TOTAL (B)(2): 0
Total Public Shareholding
(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2) = = 0% 0% o
C. Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) I 260000] 260000] 100%] [ sso000]  2s0000] 100%] 0
Shareholding of Promoters
Sl. No. Shareholder's Name No. of share held at the beginning |No. of share held at the end of the| % Change
of the year (April 1, 2019) year (March 31, 2020) during the
year
No. of Shares |% of Total|% of No. of|% of Total|% of
Share  of|shares Shares Share of|shares
the pledged the pledged
Company |encumbe Company |encumber
red to ed to total
total shares
shares
1|JK Technosoft Limited £59,994 100% 0 859,994 100% 0 0
2|Mr. Abhishek Singhania 1 0% 0 1 0% 0 0
3|Mr. Satish Chandra Gupta 1 0% 0 1 0% 0 0
4|Mr. Shyam Verma 1 0% 0 1 0% 0 0
5{Mr. R.K. Kamra 1 0% 0 1 0% 0 0
6{Mr. Yuvraj Bahadur 1 0% 0 1 0% 0 0
7|Mr. Rajiv Mittal 1 0% 0 1 0% 0 0
Total 860,000 100% 0 860,000 100% 0 0
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(iii) Change in Promoter's Holding

(iv)

Sl. No. Shareholder's Name No. of share held at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year
(April 1, 2019) (April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020)
No. of Shares % of Total Share of  |No. of Shares % of Total Share of the
the Company Company

At the beginning of the year 860,000 100% 860,000 100%
1|JK Technosoft Limited 859,994 100% 859,994 100%
2| Mr. Abhishek Singhania 1 0% 1 0%
3| Mr. Satish Chandra Gupta 1 0% 1 0%
4|Mr. Shyam Verma 1 0% 1 0%
5|Mr. R.K. Kamra 1 0% 1 0%
6|Mr. Yuvraj Bahadur 1 0% 1 0%
7|Mr. Rajiv Mittal 1 0% 1 0%

Date wise increase/decrease

in Promoters Share holding

during the year specifying

the reasons for No Change

increase/decrease (e.g.

allotment/transfer/bonus/s

weat equity etc)

At the end of the year 860,000 100% 860,000 100%
11JK Technosoft Limited 860,000 100% 860,000 100%
2| Mr. Abhishek Singhania 1 0% 1 0%
3| Mr. Satish Chandra Gupta 1 0% 1 0%
4|Mr. Shyam Verma 1 0% 1 0%
5|Mr. R.K. Kamra 1 0% 1 0%
6{Mr. Yuvraj Bahadur 1 0% 1 0%
7|Mr. Rajiv Mittal 1 0% 1 0%

Shareholding Pattern of Top Ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

Sl. No.

Shareholder's Name

No. of share held at the beginning of the year

(April 1, 2019)

No. of share held at the end of the year
(March 31, 2020)

No. of Shares

% of Total Share of
the Company

No. of Shares

% of Total Share of the
Company

I

At the beginning of the year

0%

0%

Date wise increase/decrease
in Promaters Share holding
during the year specifying
the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/s
weat equity etc)

At the end of the year

0%

0%
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(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnnel (KMP)

5l. No. Shareholder's Name

No. of share held at the beginning of the year
(April 1, 2019)

No. of share held at the end of the year

(March 31, 2020)

No. of Shares % of Total Share of No. of Shares % of Total Share of the
the Company Company

At the beginning of the year - 0% - 0%

Date wise increase/decrease

in Promoters Share holding

during the year specifying

the reasons for

Increase/decrease (e.g.

allotment/transfer/bonus/s

weat equity etc)

At the end of the year - l 0% | - ] 0%

V  INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
Particulars Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding deposits Loans Indebtedness

Indebtness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 7,891,192 42,442,577 - 50,333,770
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - .
iii} Interest accrued but not due - - -
Total (l+i|+!li) 7,891,192 42,442,577 - 50,333,769
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
Additions - -
|Reduction 3,244,895 6,547,539 - 9,792,434
Net Change 4,646,297 35,895,038 - 40,541,335
{Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 4,646,297 35,895,038 - 40,541,336
ii) Interest due but not paid - -
iil) Interest accrued but not due - = = 0
Total (i+ii+iii) 4,646,297 35,895,038 - 40,541,335

VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A.  Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager:

81 No. | particulars of Remuneration

Name of the MD/WTD/Manager
VD W'I'D_'M_s"

Total Amount

anager

;) Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17{1) of the Income

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income tax Act, 1961

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income Tax Act,

2 Stock option

w

Sweat Equity

4 Commission

as % of profit

others (specify)

5 Others, please specify

Total (A)

Ceiling as per the Act
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Remuneration to other directors:

5l, No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of the Directors

Total Amount

Independent Directors

|a) Fee for attend‘in_g board committee meetings

{b) Commission

(c ) Others, please specify

Total (1)

Other Non Executive Directors

(a) Fee for attending

(b) Commission

(c) Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act.

Remuneration to Key Mangerial Personnel other than MD/ M.

s/ WTDS

Sl. No.

Particulars of R eration

Key M

ial Personnel

Total Amount

CEO

cs CFO

Gross Salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income

{b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(¢ ) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income Tax Act,

Stock Option

w

Sweat Equity

Commission

as % of profit

others, specify

Others, please specify

Total

PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Sl. No.

Type
Act

Section of the Companies

Brief Description

Details of
Penalty/Punishment/
Compounding fees
imposed

Authority |Appeall
(RD/NCLT/ |made if
Court) any (give
details)

COMPANY

|Penalty

Punishment I

Compounding T

DIRECTORS

Penalty

v.

Punishment

Compounding

OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

Date
Place:

05.12.2020

New Delhi (Director)

" CONSULT
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[ —
Babu Abraham(DIN:00532197,

C
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